
 

H
A

R
R

O
W

 TO
W

N
 C

EN
TR

E FO
R

U
M

  
 

W
ED

N
ESD

A
Y 9 D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2009 
4.00 PM

  
 

C
O

N
FER

EN
C

E SU
ITE, ST 

A
N

N
’S SH

O
PPIN

G
 C

EN
TR

E, 
ST A

N
N

’S R
O

A
D

, H
A

R
R

O
W

 
  

 
  M

EM
B

ER
SH

IP    Q
uorum

 = 6 (to include 2 C
ore Funding O

rganisations) 
   C

hairm
an: 

 Steve K
ent, M

anager 
– 

St G
eorge’s Shopping &

 Leisure C
entre * 

  
C

ouncillors:  
 

 
M

arilyn A
shton 

N
arinder Singh M

udhar (VC
) 

 

M
rs R

ekha Shah 
 

   

  C
ore Funders: 

   K
eith B

ow
ling 

– 
B

oots the C
hem

ist  
  Fergus Egan, A

sset M
anager 

– 
Legal and G

eneral Property Ltd/St G
eorge’s  

  A
lan Em

m
, Facilities M

anager 
– 

G
E M

oney 
  C

hris G
rant 

– 
M

arks and Spencer  
  M

ark H
aynes, M

anager 
– 

D
ebenham

s  
  K

urt Jansen 
– 

M
cD

onalds R
estaurant  

  A
neka Shah 

– 
N

andos R
estaurant 

  D
aniel W

right 
– 

H
SB

C
 

 
 

  Perm
anent M

em
bers: 

   H
ow

ard B
luston 

– 
N

orth W
est London C

ham
ber of C

om
m

erce 
   O

rdinary M
em

bers 
   Pat C

arvalho 
– 

H
arrow

 C
ollege 

  A
m

in Lalljee 
– 

O
rient R

ice and Foods Ltd 
  B

ernard Segal 
– 

R
oxborough R

esidents’ A
ssociation 

   N
on-Voting A

dvisers 
   The R

everend B
ob G

ardiner 
– 

H
arrow

 B
aptist C

hurch 
  PC

 N
eale H

utchings 
– 

M
etropolitan Police 

  PC
 M

ick M
ilner 

– 
M

etropolitan Police 
  C

hief Inspector Louis Sm
ith 

– 
M

etropolitan Police 
  A

nthony W
ood 

– 
H

arrow
 Public Transport U

sers’ A
ssociation 

 
 

 
  Issued by the D

em
ocratic Services Section, Legal and G

overnance Services D
epartm

ent, H
arrow

 C
ouncil  

  
C

ontact:  M
ark D

oherty, A
cting D

em
ocratic Services O

fficer 
Tel:  020 8416 8050    E-m

ail:  m
ark.doherty@

harrow
.gov.uk 

 N
O

TE:  IF YO
U

 R
EQ

U
IR

E D
ISA

B
LED

 A
C

C
ESS PLEA

SE C
O

N
TA

C
T TH

E D
EM

O
C

R
A

TIC
 SER

VIC
ES 

O
FFIC

ER
 LISTED

 A
B

O
VE. 

  N
O

TE FO
R

 TH
O

SE A
TTEN

D
IN

G
 TH

E M
EETIN

G
: 

 IF YO
U

 W
ISH

 TO
 D

ISPO
SE O

F TH
IS A

G
EN

D
A

, PLEA
SE LEA

VE IT B
EH

IN
D

 A
FTER

 TH
E M

EETIN
G

. IT W
ILL 

B
E C

O
LLEC

TED
 FO

R
 R

EC
YC

LIN
G

. 



   
H

A
R

R
O

W
 TO

W
N

 C
EN

TR
E FO

R
U

M
  

 
C

O
N

FER
EN

C
E SU

ITE, ST A
N

N
’S SH

O
PPIN

G
 C

EN
TR

E, ST AN
N

’S R
O

A
D

, H
A

R
R

O
W

 
 

W
ED

N
ESD

A
Y 9 D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2009 
   

A
 m

eeting of the H
arrow

 Tow
n C

entre Forum
 w

ill be held in C
onference Suite, St 

A
nn’s Shopping C

entre, St Ann’s R
oad, H

arrow
 at 4.00 pm

 on W
ednesday 9 D

ecem
ber 

2009.  Light refreshm
ents w

ill be provided.   
A

G
EN

D
A

 
  

  
1. 

A
pologies for A

bsence:   
 2. 

M
inutes of M

eetings:   
 

E
nc 

 
To agree the m

inutes of the follow
ing m

eeting as a correct record: 
 

H
arrow

 Tow
n C

entre Forum
 m

eeting 26 February 2009.  (P
ages 1 - 4) 

 
3. 

M
atters A

rising:   
 

 

 
To consider any m

atters arising from
 the m

inutes of the last m
eeting.     

 
4. 

H
arrow

 C
ore S

trategy P
referred O

ption:   
 

E
nc 

 
A

 presentation by S
enior P

rofessional Policy and R
esearch.  (P

ages 5 - 34) 
 

5. 
A

ny O
ther Business:   

 
 

 
W

hich the C
hairm

an has decided is urgent and cannot otherw
ise be dealt 

w
ith.   

 
 



H
arrow

 Tow
n C

entre Forum
 

 
N

otes of the inform
al m

eeting of the H
arrow

 Tow
n C

entre Forum
 held at the Training 

R
oom

, D
ebenham

s, H
arrow

 on 26 February 2009. 
  P

resent: 
 C

ouncillor M
arilyn A

shton  
P

C
 N

eale H
utchings 

B
ernard S

egal 
H

ow
ard B

luston 
S

teve K
ent (C

hairm
an) 

C
ouncillor R

ekha S
hah 

R
everend B

ob G
ardiner 

 John H
urst 

C
ouncillor 

N
arinder 

S
ingh 

M
udhar 

 

 O
fficers 

C
laire C

odling, P
hil G

reenw
ood and D

avid S
klair 

 1. 
Q

uorum
/A

pologies for A
bsence 

 A
pologies 

for 
absence 

had 
been 

received 
from

 
Jeannie 

C
ohen-B

rand, 
M

ichael 
W

indeatt, A
nthony W

ood and Suzy W
ood. It w

as noted that the quorum
 for the m

eeting 
w

as six, to include tw
o C

ore Funding O
rganisations, and that the m

eeting w
as therefore 

inquorate. 
 It w

as agreed to hold an inform
al discussion of the business on the agenda. 

 2. 
M

inutes 
 

It w
as noted that the m

inutes of the m
eeting held on 2 July 2008 w

ould be considered   
at the next m

eeting. 
 3. 

H
arrow

 B
usiness Im

provem
ent D

istrict 
 

The m
eeting received a report from

 the C
orporate D

irector of P
lace S

haping w
hich set 

out the proposals put forw
ard by the H

arrow
 Tow

n C
entre B

ID
 C

om
pany for the 

establishm
ent of a Business Im

provem
ent D

istrict in H
arrow

 Tow
n C

entre. The report 
included proposed action plans that focused on reducing costs, increasing footfall, and 
w

orking together.  
 

The C
hairm

an introduced the docum
ent and, in response to a question, inform

ed the 
m

eeting that the B
ID

 C
om

pany w
as Lim

ited by guarantee w
ith papers being subm

itted 
to C

om
pany H

ouse. The C
om

pany w
ould run itself w

ith assistance from
 a B

id M
anager,  

a salaried post w
hich w

ould replace the  post of Tow
n C

entre M
anager. H

e highlighted 
the process for the ballot on w

hether to accept the B
ID

 and the basis on w
hich 

businesses qualified for a vote. Funds w
ould be collected annually in advance, 

beginning half w
ay through the rating year. 

 C
larification w

as sought as to the position of sm
aller com

panies such as kiosks. The 
B

ID
 business plan indicated that businesses w

ith a rateable value below
 £3000 w

ould 
be exem

pt from
 the B

ID
 levy but w

ould not be entitled to vote. It w
as suggested that if 

sm
aller traders w

ere aw
are that the m

ain participants w
ere in favour it could influence 

their decision. 
 

A
genda Item

 2
P

ages 1 to 4

1



The C
hairm

an inform
ed the m

eeting that due to the deferral of the vote by six m
onths  

to July, due to the original tight tim
escale, the econom

ic clim
ate w

as not ideal. O
nce the 

result of a poll currently taking place am
ongst the top 100 businesses w

as know
n, the 

B
ID

 B
oard w

ould decide w
hether to proceed w

ith the vote in July. S
hould the July vote 

be negative, it w
ould be very difficult to hold a re-ballot in the future. 

 The report put forw
ard tw

o options: a Tow
n C

entre C
onsultation G

roup or a Tow
n 

C
entre Partnership.  

 W
hen asked how

 the representatives in attendance at the m
eeting could be of 

assistance 
in 

encouraging 
a 

yes 
vote, 

the 
C

hairm
an 

suggested 
that 

they 
raise 

aw
areness as there w

ere still a lot of people w
ho did not know

 w
hat it w

as about. It w
as 

recognised that due to the current financial situation, businesses currently had a lot of 
pressure on their finances and having to pay m

ore even for som
ething of benefit to 

them
 m

ay not be m
et w

ith enthusiasm
. 

 The seventeen bids for B
ID

s in London to date had been successful and there w
ould be 

a vote in Ilford in M
arch. 

 It w
as noted that: 

• 
The business plan w

as based on the findings of a poll of tow
n businesses 

• 
The installation of a police kiosk should m

ake a visible im
pact  

• 
S

hopkeepers w
ere now

 able to report crim
e on radios and the C

C
TV

 coverage 
w

as good. 
• 

H
IB

 (H
arrow

 In B
usiness) w

as receiving increased dem
and for business support  

• 
S

hould a business cease to trade, the landlord w
ould rem

ain liable for business 
rates 

 
A

n initial approach had been m
ade to local m

anagers to seek their agreem
ent to the 

B
ID

 prior to contacting the business headquarters as not all local m
anagers had the 

authority to m
ake the decision as to the vote. The officer drew

 attention to a business 
w

orkshop w
ith B

usiness Link for London on 19 M
arch 2009 to w

hich all offices in the 
H

arrow
 Tow

n C
entre w

ould be invited. A
ny further com

m
ents from

 m
em

bers of the 
Tow

n C
entre Forum

 should be conveyed to  the R
egeneration P

roject M
anager during 

the next w
eek. 

 
4. 

Local D
evelopm

ent Fram
ew

ork (LD
F) C

ore Strategy 
  

The Forum
 w

as inform
ed that the last tim

e this item
 w

as discussed it had been the 
m

iddle of the consultation phase of the preferred strategy. The consultation had 
finished in August and the final preferred option w

ould be available for consultation later 
in 2009. The Tow

n C
entre rem

ained the focus for developm
ent. 

  
It w

as noted that a design guide S
upplem

entary P
lanning D

ocum
ent, w

hich w
as not site 

specific but the basis of w
hat the C

ouncil w
ould w

ant to see, w
as being finalised. The 

C
ore 

S
trategy 

w
ould 

direct 
a 

significant 
am

ount 
of 

grow
th 

to 
the 

tow
n 

centre. 
C

onsultation w
as expected in O

ctober and key stakeholders w
ere already engaged. 

 5. 
Police/H

arrow
 Against C

rim
e 

  
John H

urst, representing H
arrow

 B
usiness A

gainst C
rim

e (H
B

A
C

), reported that the 
schem

e had now
 been in existence for three years.  

 

2



H
arrow

 w
as currently the borough w

ith the low
est recorded crim

e. A
n opinion survey 

had resulted in com
plaints about fairly m

inor issues such as chuggers.  
 B

usiness people joining the schem
e w

ould get the opportunity to influence priorities. 
S

hould 
the 

B
ID

 
be 

successful, 
crim

e 
prevention 

schem
es 

w
ould 

be 
available 

throughout the area. The statistics could not include all action taken, such as the 
initiative of speaking to know

n crim
inals w

hen seen in the vicinity of the tow
n centre and 

ensuring that they m
oved on. 

 The Forum
 w

as inform
ed of: 

• 
an Early Intervention P

roject w
hereby anyone under 18 causing trouble w

as 
referred to a program

m
e that provided an opportunity for them

 to correct their 
behaviour. U

nless the person w
as arrested, there w

as not an official record of 
action taken. 

• 
a project to divert young people into the cadet forces w

hich w
as steered by 

business people 
• 

research indicated that the public noted how
 safe an area w

as, for exam
ple, 

litter, chew
ing gum

, graffiti 
• 

business people had the opportunity to share inform
ation though H

BA
C

 
 

A
n officer of H

arrow
 C

ouncil reported that the A
nti Social B

ehaviour P
anel for London 

had profiled the w
ork that H

arrow
 w

as undertaking including: 
• 

 a steering body w
ith E

aling and B
rent to w

ork on a cross border basis on issues 
such 

as 
the W

em
bley 

S
tadium

 footprint, w
hich 

included 
consideration 

of 
banning orders and C

ontrolled P
arking Zones in a co-ordinated m

anner 
• 

piloting R
esponsible R

etail A
greem

ents 
• 

intelligence sharing  
 6. 

D
ate of next m

eeting 
 

It w
as suggested that the next m

eeting be held in approxim
ately three m

onths tim
e. 

M
em

bers requested that a reasonable notice period be given of the date chosen. 
 

  (N
ote: The discussion having com

m
enced at 4.15pm

, closed at 5.30pm
) 

3



4

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Harrow Local Development Framework 

Core Strategy – Preferred Option

Public Consultation – 12 November 2009 
– 11 January 2010

A
genda Item

 4
P

ages 5 to 34

5



Introduction

● Provide a brief overview of the role and purpose of the 
Core Strategy – why it is such an important document

● Set out the context and main drivers for change in 
Harrow:
– The existing environment and our emerging evidence base 
– Changes to national policy
– Changes in the regional planning context
– Responding to previous consultation

● Outline the preferred option and explain how this was 
arrived at and how it responds to the main drivers for 
change

● Seek your initial views on the preferred option 
● Briefly outline the next stages 

6



The Importance of the Core Strategy

● LDF is a suite of documents with the Core Strategy at its 
heart

● Sets the context for all other LDF documents 
● Sets out where, when and how Harrow will develop and 

change over the next 15 years
● Provides the strategic objectives and policies to deliver 

the strategic vision
● Only means by which to: 

– recognise, protect and enhance those aspects of the 
borough communities value;

– respond to change and identified needs
– bring about real change

7



Baseline studies

Harrow is not static

Purpose of baseline studies
● Identify those aspects of our natural environment, our 

cultural heritage, our economy, location, facilities etc 
we want to protect or enhance

● Identify short, medium and long-term trends, issues or 
needs

8



Harrow in Context - overview

Existing situation:
● predominantly low-medium density housing
● village centres and inter-war ‘Metroland’ centres with 

strong district identity
● wealth of local heritage and character, diverse 

community
● some large employers and strength in enterprise
● diverse, harmonious resident population
● ‘best of city and country’ - SCS

9



Main Drivers for Change - population

A growing, changing population
● London and Harrow’s population forecast to grow 

(natural growth as well as national and international 
migration)

● Harrow population 219,732 in 2009, projected increase 
to 223,529 in 2026 (+3,797) based on housing growth

● increasing proportion of older people and increasing 
ethnic diversity

● social change fuelling smaller households but a backlog 
of larger affordable housing needs

● Harrow household formation +5,345 over 2009-2026

10



Main Drivers for Change - economic

A growing, changing economy
● economic growth expected to resume with financial services a 

catalyst for other sectors in London
● 62% of employed residents work outside the Borough
● 30% of local employment provided by offices in & around Harrow 

town centre
● growth in new business formation & SMEs (9,000)
● need for retail growth to maintain share of expenditure/ 

safeguarding Metropolitan centre status
● vulnerable sectors in Harrow include public sector and 

manufacturing
● pockets of deprivation in some wards

11



Main Drivers for Change – climate 
change

A changing climate
● change projections suggest hotter, drier summers and 

wetter winters in London
● summer overheating, winter flooding and water 

shortages all key urban climate change issues
● need to reduce CO2 output: use less energy, supply 

energy efficiently, use renewable energy
● need to build resilience to climate change
● over 70% of households in Harrow own a car
● over 50,000 homes built in 1920/30s
● need to better manage waste and to look at waste as a 

resource

12



Main Drivers for Change - infrastructure

The impacts of growth and development on infrastructure
● consideration of a broad range of infrastructure from utilities,

schools and transport to green infrastructure, public realm, and
libraries.

● most strategic infrastructure is outside of the Council's control 
e.g. power, water, healthcare, public transport, higher education

● local physical infrastructure – energy and water – can be largely 
met within existing arrangements

● further work underway in respect of the local highway network at
key junctions, bus services and open space provision

● dialogue with other departments & NHS in connection with 
educational & cultural service provision and health

● Arts, culture and green infrastructure contribute to sustainable
communities but lack specific service providers, long-term 
management, capital strategies, funding streams etc 

13



Main Drivers for Change – quality of life

A new focus on quality of life

● affordability of housing and access to appropriate 
accommodation

● quality of the urban environment
● life expectancy and lifestyle
● crime and fear of crime
● biodiversity
● preserving the best of city and country
● greater need for access to skills, training and employment
● areas for leisure for all ages for sports, recreation, relaxing 

and health

14



Managing Change

What are we seeking to achieve:
● A distinctive, unifying spatial vision
● A plan for growth to 2026
● Evidence led and informed by consultation
● Meets local needs and circumstance but gives effect 

to national and regional policy
● Deliverable and supported by service delivery bodies 

including council and partners (NHS, GLA, HCA)

● The preferred option is the spatial strategy - i.e. the 
strategic vision, objectives and policies

15



Preferred Option – revised vision

● Identification of a Harrow and Wealdstone Intensification Area 
providing:
– a distinctive new urban form respecting the setting of Harrow-on-

the-Hill 
– realisation of the opportunities afforded by Wealdstone's

accessibility to Euston and central London
– industrial areas around Wealdstone to be locations of choice for 

industry and small and medium enterprises
– better linkages with local colleges and higher education to 

deliver the skills to meet labour market needs 
– a much improved Station Road - reinforcing its role as the 

gateway between and to our main town centres
– coordinated development providing a coherent built form that 

reflects strict design principles, high environmental standards 
and is supported by infrastructure

16



Preferred Option – revision vision cont

– Harrow town centre to be the focus of retail growth and a consolidated 
but well supported office offer

– improved accessibility to public transport and transport hubs
Outside the Intensification Area
– opportunities for redevelopment of sites within district and local centres 

in support of their role and function
– a range of housing that meets identified local needs in the right 

locations
– valued qualities and the character of suburban areas are safeguarded 

and infill and back garden development resisted
– network of functional open spaces forming part of an extended green 

grid that residents enjoy, in which biodiversity thrives, and that 
addresses the impacts of climate change and intensification

– enhanced public transport links between Harrow, west and central
London as part of a transport hub and spoke model

17



Key Diagram

18



Preferred Option - objectives

● Population and diversity
– Celebrate Harrow’s diversity
– Providing housing and employment to meet growth
– Access to community and social facilities throughout residents 

lives

● Economic development
– Manage stock of business and employment land
– Support development that provides and promotes affordable 

and flexible small to medium enterprises
– Direct housing and employment growth to suitable locations 

within the Intensification Area
– Retain Harrow’s Metropolitan status
– Address barriers to employment 

19



Preferred Option – objectives cont

● Housing and sustainable communities
– Meet Harrow’s strategic housing requirement (5,345 between 2009- and 

2026)
– Protect Harrow’s suburban character 
– Address problems of affordable and supported housing
– Provide a mix of housing types and discourage single tenure housing
– Ensuring building for life, housing design guide and accessible homes 

are met
● Climate change and flooding 

– Reduce CO2 by locating development in accessible areas, reducing the 
need to travel and promoting sustainable transport

– Maximise sustainable development through buildings designs and layout 
that improves resource efficiency and makes provision for on-site 
renewable

– Promote green roofs and sustainable and natural drainage
– Enhance and expand the green grid and protect trees and garden space 

from development
– Direct development away from areas of high flood risk

20



Preferred Option - objectives cont

● Retail and leisure
– Maintain Harrow’s market share in retail
– Promote Harrow town centre as location for major retail growth 
– allow retail and commercial development within district and local centres 

where development meets local needs and is of appropriate scale
– Respect local historical and cultural context to create attractive vibrant 

town centres
– Promote improved public realm and safe public parking 

● Open space, sports, recreation and biodiversity
– Maintain the existing extent of the Green Belt, and MOL
– presumption against any net loss of open space
– Promote open spaces as a network of multifunctional green spaces
– Seek re-provision of open space in new developments on strategic sites
– Pursue redevelopment of Harrow Leisure Centre and duel use facilities
– Strengthen the green grid

21



Preferred Option – objectives cont

● Transport, access and movement
– Secure funding for improvements to town centre transport hubs
– Re-engineer Station Road as a key transport/public realm corridor
– Secure deliverable travel plans
– Support proposals for better orbital links within west London
– Maintain parking standards and require provision for car clubs/car 

sharing
● Quality of life, heritage and culture

– Safeguard Harrow’s valued character and distinctiveness
– Address environmental and sustainable issues relating to growth
– Ensure adequate infrastructure is in place – proactive not reactive
– Maintain Harrow museum
– Support and increase accessibility to, and function of our libraries and 

other cultural facilities
– Outside the intensification area, ensure the pattern, design and scale of 

development reflects the local context

22



Preferred Option – policy 1

Strategic Policy 1 - Managing Growth in Harrow
● Harrow Wealdstone Intensification Area

– Strategic area status in the draft London Plan
– Circa 2,500 homes between 2009 and 2026
– Up to 2,000 new jobs
– Med/high density residential development of high urban and 

environmental design
– CHP opportunity (Kodak)
– Focus for retail growth
– Specific delivery plan 

● Rest of Borough
– Circa 2,850 new homes to 2026 on strategic brownfield sites
– Stable or more natural growth focused on centres/PTAL/local context
– Low/suburban density of high urban and environmental design
– Enhanced green grid
– Policy based upon criteria

23



Preferred Option – policy 2

● Housing
– Meet Harrow’s strategic housing requirement of 5,345 new 

homes through IA and strategic sites
– Presumption against infill and back garden development
– Apply strict controls to conversions to ensure these result in 

quality homes of a reasonable size and adequately address 
impacts

– Secure appropriate levels of affordable housing from 
developments of 10 dwellings or more in the right location that 
matches needs

– All new housing to comply with Mayor’s Housing Design Guide
– Make provision for Gypsy and Traveller accommodation

24



Housing Site Capacity

25



Preferred Option – policy 3

● Employment and Economic Development
– At least 2,000 new jobs within the IA
– Regeneration and intensification of employment uses within 

Wealdstone Industrial Area, including Kodak
– Rejuvenation of Harrow town centre as Harrow’s preferred office 

location
– Growth in retail, service sectors, leisure and hotel use within the 

IA and, having regard to local context, within district and local 
centres

– Monitor and closely manage the release of any surplus existing 
employment land, applying criteria

– Seek provision of affordable premises for start-up, small and 
medium enterprises in new developments

– Seek contributions to employment training

26



Preferred Option – policy 4

● Town Centre and Retail
– Provide some 44,000 sq m of new retail within the Borough to 

2020
– Direct large retail and other borough wide services to Harrow 

town centre
– Promote a more buoyant day and night time economy in Harrow 

town centre
– Secure enhancements to a secure, safe public realm and 

efficient public transport network accessing the town centres
– Promote and implement a town centre strategy or BID
– Seek to bring forward significant redevelopment to create 

gateways to the town centres and an attractive environment that 
encourages further inward investment

27



Preferred Option – policy 5

● Transport
– Secure enhancements to public transport and transport hubs to 

and from Harrow and Wealdstone town centres
– Ensure development densities are linked to existing or proposed 

transport accessibility
– Secure through development the delivery of the projects set out 

in the Local Implementation Plan, with priority given to 
sustainable transport such as walking and cycling

– Secure improvements to Station Road and the 
carriageway/pedestrian interface.

– Ensure appropriate parking provision for the disabled
– Encourage TfL and rail providers to maintain a fast and reliable 

service to central London

28



Preferred Option – policy 6

● Open Spaces, Recreation and Biodiversity
– Inappropriate development and use of the Green Belt and Metropolitan 

Open Land is to be resisted, save for strategically important enabling 
development

– Open spaces to be managed as interconnected environmental resource 
contributing to off-set the impacts of growth and development

– Promote formation of the green grid to enhance biodiversity and 
amenity values

– Enhance parks and other public spaces to increase the accessibility to 
these areas and their use and appreciation by users

– Protect statutory designated site and seek their enhancement and, 
where possible extension

– Improve biodiversity in new development through provision of trees, 
communal garden spaces, green roofs and the maintenance of natural 
water courses.

29



Preferred Option – policy 7

● Waste Management
– Aim to reduce the amount of waste produced in the Borough
– Promote waste as a resource and that it is managed towards the 

upper end of the waste hierarchy
– Require new development to address waste management
– Safeguard existing waste sites
– In conjunction with partners in west London, allocate sufficient

new sites for waste management facilities

30



Preferred Option – policy 8

● Urban Design
– Within the IA require development to achieve a high quality new 

urban realm form in accordance with design principals 
– Manage the height, form and density of development to ensure 

impacts of bulk and scale, as well as on view shafts and the local 
and wider setting are minimised

– Outside of the IA, development to to conform to local context in
terms of scale, design, historic or architectural characteristics 
providing an areas identity

– Encourage the retention and maintenance of scheduled 
buildings

31



Preferred Option – policy 9

● Sustainable Design
– Buildings and new development to contribute to the energy 

hierarchy, be designed so as to avoid or be resilient to the 
impacts of climate change

– Make efficient use of resources, such a water and energy 
through compliance with Core for Sustainable Homes and 
BREEAM standards

– Seek opportunities for decentralised energy supply on either site 
or community wide basis

– Development to implement and maximise renewable energy 
systems and use

32



Preferred Option – policy 10

● Infrastructure
– New development to be coordinated and phased with provision 

of social and physical infrastructure
– Developers will be required to demonstrate sufficient capacity is 

available or will be provided to serve new developments
– Contributions towards infrastructure will be secured through 

planning obligations 
– Development of infrastructure will be permitted where it is 

needed to serve existing and new development, provided 
adverse impacts of provision are mitigated

– Provision of key infrastructure will need to be prioritised
– Coordinated delivery of infrastructure will be managed by the 

Council through a Delivery Plan. 

33



Next Steps 

● Consultation on the preferred option 12 Nov 2009 – 11 
Jan 2010

● Continuing internal and external consultation with 
service providers, delivery partners, developers and 
key stakeholders

● Prepare ‘Pre-Submission’ version of the CS for public 
consultation in March 2010

● Submit final Core Strategy to SoS in September 2010
● Examination Spring 2011
● Adoption of CS Autumn 2011

Any questions?

34


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Meetings
	4 Harrow Core Strategy Preferred Option

